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County Government of Nakuru

lioivasha Municiptlity
Annual Report and Finmciol Stotentents for the year endetl June 30, 2023

l. Acronyms & Glossary of Terms

fnser, acrctnynts ancl glossary o1f tertns used in thc rcporl e.g.

PSASB Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

FY Financial Year

OSHA Occupational Safety & Heath Act

ADP Annual Development Plan

APR Annual progress report

CG County Government

CIDP County Integrated Development Plan

CRF County Revenue Fund

FY Financial Year

HR Human Resource

IFMIS

KUSP

MTEF

OSR

PFM

Integrated Financial Management Information Systems

Kenya Urban Support Programme

Medium Term Expenditure Framework

Own Source Revenue

Public Finance Management Act

ll
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2. Key Entity Information and Management

a) Backgroundinformation

Naivasha Municipality is established by and derives its authority and accountability frorn

Urban Areas and Cities Act No. I 3 of 201 I (amended 201 9) and Cities and Municipal Charter

on l3rH FEBRUARy 2019. The City/ Municipality is under the County Government of

NAKURU and is domiciled in Kenya.

b) PrincipalActivities

The Municipality's vision, Mission and Core Values are outlined as follows:

\/ISION
A prospcrous and hospitablc grcen city

MISSION

Provide affbrdable, high quality municipal services and responsive accessible local

governanc6 ensuring all persons the opportunity to enjoy contributing to and being part of

municipal ity community.

CORE VALUES
Service excellence

Integrity

Accountability

Customer focused service

Innovation

Stcwardship

Mandatc/fir
Ilascd on tl
Chartcr, thc

the Municip

lnctlonr of Municipality of Naivasha

[c ljrban Areas and Cities Amendmcnt Act 2ol9 end the Naiwasha Municipal

Municipal Board of Naivasha perforrns thc lbllorving delegatcd functions rxithin

tality

a) Prornotion. regulatipn and provision of refuse collection and solid waste management

lll
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Services.

Promotion and provision of water and sanitation services and infrastructure (in areas

within the Municipality not served by the Water and Sanitation provider)

Construction, Maintenance of Urban roads and associated infrastructure

Construction, Maintenance of storm drainage and flood controls

Construction, Maintenance of walkways and other non-motorized transport

intiastructure

Construction, Maintenance of recreational parks and green spaces

Construction, Maintenance of street lighting

Construction, Maintenance and regulation of traffic controls and parking facilities

Construction, Maintenance of bus stands and taxi stands

Regulation of outdoor advertising

Construction, Maintenance and regulation of municipal markets and abattoirs

Construction, Maintenance of fire stations, provision of firefighting services,

emergency preparedness and disaster management

Promotion and regulation of rnunicipal sports and cultural activities

Regulation and provision of animal control and welf'are

Enforcement of municipal plans and development controls

Municipal administration services (including maintenance of administrative offices)

Promoting infrastructural developrnent and services within municipality.

Any other functions as may be delegated by the County Government

c) Key Management

The NAIVASHA Municipality's management is under the following key organs

o County department - Lands Housing Physical Planning and Urban Development
o Board of Management
o Accounting Officer/ City/Municipality Manager
r Sectional Heads of Departments

b)

c)

d)

e)

0

c)

h)

i)

i)
k)

r)

m)

n)

o)

p)

q)

r)

lv
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d) Fid Management

The key ement personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30tl'June 2023

and direct fiduciary responsibility were:

D.M.NDIRITU

MARY KAGONYA

CAROLINE KAMAU

STRATOR DANIEL NDUNGU

I unicipality Manager

ead of departments

2

J

OF ACCOUNTING UNIT

OF ACCOUNTING LINIT

4

Ref '-'l'osition Name

t-

L_._ , _-L

l-
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e) Fiduciary OversightArrangements

i) Audit and Risk Management Cornmittee

In order to ensure effective governance risk management and compliance within the

rnunicipal administration the committee is composed of qualified and knowledgeable

members with relevant expertise in finance risk management and related areas.

The committee is concerned with the Risk Oversight, internal Controls and is

constantly seeking to keep the municipality compliant with relevant laws and

regulations. The committee also monitors finance activities to unearth any fraud,

misconduct, unethical behaviour and non-compliance'

The committee provides regular reports to the Board summarizing findings and

recommendations for further action.

ii) County Assembly committees

The county assembly in discharging its mandate of oversight over the county entities

takes the following steps:

. Form a dedicated oversight committee within the county assembly responsible

for financial matters related to the municipality.

o Develop terms of reference outlining the committee's purpose, composition,

responsibilities, authority, and reporting mechanisms.

e Ensure the oversight committee comprises members with financial expertise,

legal knowledge, and a good understanding of municipal operations'

o Conduct regular reviews and audits of the municipality's financial statements,

budgets, expenditures, and financial management practices.

o Scrutinize and approve the municipality's budget, ensuring alignment with the

municipality's strategic goals and compliance with financial regulations.

. Monitor revenue collection processes, disbursements, and expenditures to

ensure compliance with the approved budget and financial regulations.

. Monitor contract awards, procurement processes' and compliance with

procurement regulations to prevent fraud, corruption, or any malpractice'

VI
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iii)

P.O. 126

M cipal Council Offices Building/

Mai Mahiu Highway

ha. KENYA

Senate receives the reporl ofthe auditor general and proceeds to take any further

uiry on raised issues and to recommend the matters to relevant agencies

Offices

h) Ban

s)c cts

Tel (+o51)2214142

E- : www.Nakuru.go.ke

\[/e : w\4,$'.Nakulu.g0.ke

Banks

Naivasha Municipality Urban Development Grant Account

Kenya Commercial Bank

Kenyatta Avenue Branch Nakuru

AC. NO,12615E5429

i) Ind dent Auditor

Aud General

offi of the Auditor General

Anni Towers, University Way

vll

ended June 30, 2023

Provide regular reports to the county assembly summarizing the committee's

activities, financial findings, and recommendations for improvements or

corrective actions.

ttees ofthe Senate
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P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100

Nairobi, I(enYa

J) PrinciPal Legal Adviser

The AttomeY General

State Law Office

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200

Nairobi, KenYa

vlll
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I

r Sam Weru - Chairman

Age:52

Profession: Wildlife Management

Attainment: PhD Biology of Conservation

Position: Board Chairperson

2

M rPeninnah Muigai

Age: 49 years

Profession: Law

Attainment: Bachelor's LLB

Position: Non-executive Board Member and

vice chairperson ofthe Board

J I

Mr

I
Daniel Mbogo Ndiritu

Age: 53

Profession: Human Resource Management

Attainment: Master's Degree

Position: Municipal Manager

4

1
Mr
s.

rancis MwangiF'

Age 43

Profession: Finance

Attainment: Bachelor's Degree

Position: Non executive Board Member and

chair of finance and administration committee

5

Mr ierald Ndungu

Age:40

Profession: Architecture

Attainment: Bachelor's degree Architecture

Position: Non-executive Board Member and

chair of Infrastructure Committee

lx

3. Naivasha Municipality Board

I Details of qualifications and expericnce

No.

h

serla

\

Namc

7
a

71
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6

Mr Absalom Mukuusi

Age: 50

Profession: Urban area Management

Attainment: Master's Degree Urban

Management

Position: Non-executive Board Member and

chair of Municipal services committee

7

Mr. Ismael lugaria Abisai

Age: 55

Profession: Electrical Engineer

Attainment: Master's degree Electrical

Engineering

Position: Non-executive Board Member

8

I

Mr. Benson Nyenjeri

Age: 43

Profession: Law

Aftainment: Bachelor's LLB

Position: Non-executive Board Member

x
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I

ard Secretary/Municipal

cr

el Mbogo Ndiritu

Municipal Manager

Overall head who oversees the day to day running

of the Board.

Accounting officer I charge of the Board

2

A Caroline KamauC

HEAD OF ACCOUNTING LrNIT (t/07/2022-

U12t2022)

Oversees all financial matters of the board

J HEAD OF ACCOUNTING UNIT (3010112023 -

30/06t2023)

Oversees all financial matters pertaining the

board

L
T
L'

C Mary Kagonya

xl

Details of qualifications and experience
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l. City/Mu cipality lloard Chairperson's Report

Municipality

liom public

f Naivasha was established in April 2019 as a culmination of a lengthy process;

icipation through an adhoc committee, resolution of the County Assembly of

Nakuru, gran ng of the Municipal Charter, and establishment of the Municipal Board, in

fulfilment of quirements of article 48 of the Constitution, County Government Act section 148,

Urban Areas d Cities Act 2011 (Amendment 2019) and other applicable laws

Naivasha Mo

Bank fundcd

an events pod

d

K

Ern Market is one of the projects implemented by the Municipality under the World

ienya Urban Support Program. The successful implementation of the project in both

Ase 2 has changed the landscape of Naivasha with a land mark structure. The market

time become a beehive of activity since commissioning of the facility by H.E

Jth June 2023.

Phase I and Ph

has in a short

President on 1l

The Munici ty has also established a Municipal Park at the middle of the CBD, giving the

residents the ch-needed resting and recreational facility at close vicinity. The facility comprises

m and hilet facilities, benches and green spaces suitablc for multiple uses by

o Constru

o Construr

r Paved P

o None M

o Cabro pi

different urban space users both young and old

Wc also succeisfully c()nstructed a 5oo-meter 1.2 Mcter diametcr heavy duty concrete drainage

which has ureally reduced the perennial floocling along Biashara Street and Kariuki Chotara Road'

1-he posirivc irrnpact ol'thc cirainage system has inrproved access to neighboring businesses and

restored the surface Previously

Other projccts include;

ction of the 3.7 KM,Industrial Area, Site and Service, Kabati Road

ction of 2.lKM Lake View Road

arking along Biashara Street

otorized Transport along Kenyatta Avenue and around Municipal Park

lved roads around the Municipal Park and covered drains

Annual Reporl
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In order to facilitate intplementation of the Municipal functions outlined in the charter', the Board

has developed and adopted the following key policy documents'

. 2Oyr Integrated Strategic (Jrban Development Plan (spatial plan)

' 5yr Integrated Development Plan (IDEP)

' 5yr Solid Waste Management Plan

. 2l no. draft reviewed bY-laws

. Naivasha Regeneration Plan2020

. Draft guidelines for allocation of market stalls

. Draft guidelines for management of Municipality public Sanitation facilities

' Draft performance contract

These tools lay a fbundation for a fulty-fledged Municipality capable of delivering all functions

anticipated in the Urban Areas and Cities Act and the Municipal Charter eff'ectively'

Chairperson of the Iloard
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2. Report of the Municipality Manager

In the year under review the Municipality budget was as outlined;

The Municipatity's key achievements in the financial year 2022/2023 were as follows

i) Construction of 3.7Knr Road in Industrial Area, Site and Service and Kabati Estates Ksh

I88rn. This project is 100% cornplete and in use. The road serves more than 30,000

residents of the three estates, improving connectivity and supporting businesses that have

sprung up along its entire length.

ii) Construction of Naivasha Wholesale Market Phase I and Phase Il 430m. The market

houses more than 700 traders and is estirnated to house more than 1500 traders at its full

capacit),. This is a rernarkable achievement given that only 403 traders were tlading at the

site betbre construction of the market.

iii) Construction of Naivasha Municipality Park, improvement of Abutting Roads, Drainage'

Paved Parking Bays and Non-Motorized transport. Ksh 69m. The f'acility comprises an events

podium and toilet fbcilities, benches and green spaces suitable for multiple uses by difl'erent urban

space users both young and old

Sub Programme (SP) Estimates 202212023

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION PLANNING AND SUPPORT SERVI CES

SP 1.1: Administration and Planning 18,349,280

SP 1.2: Personnel Services 9,388,787

SP 1.3: Financial Services 600,000

Total Expenditure Prog'l 28,338,067

PROGRAMME 2: NAIVASHA MUNICIPAL SERVICES

310,585,772

S.P 2.2: Environmental Management and Sanilalion 900,000

S.P 2.3: Naivasha Social Services 900,000

S.P 2.4: Tourism, lnvestment and Trade 800,000

Total Expenditure Prog 2 313,185,772

Total Expenditure of Vote 341,523,839

S.P 2.1: Planning and lnfraskucture
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We also successfully constructed a 500-nteter 1.2 Meter diameter heavy duty concrete drainage

which has greatly reduced the perennial flooding along Biashara Street and Kariuki Chotara Road.

The positive impact of the drainage system has improved access to neighboring businesses and

restored the surface previously

iv) Construction to Bitumen standards of 2km roads in Lakeview estate Ksh 83.2m. The

pfoject benefits more than 20,000 residents having completed a loop of the road

cOnnecting all Naivasha town estates. It also serves as a by-pass of the Kenyatta Avenue

uirich is prone to traffic congestion

In order to ftcilitate implementation of thc Municipal functions outlined in the charter, the Board

has developed and adopted the following key policy documents.

l) 20yr Intcgratcd Strategic Urban Dcvclopment Plan

This report presents the final Integrated Strategic Urban Development Plan (2014 -20i5) for

Naivasha. The main puryose of the strategic urban development plan is to fbrmulate a liamework

to guide the development of Naivasha to 2034. The plan strives to contribute towards achieving

the national and local development aspirations as enshlined in the Sustainable Developrnent Goals

(post 2015) and also elaborated in the Kenya Vision 2030. The document largely aligns to thc

boundaries espoused in the Municipal charter hence very reliable. The document needs review to

accommodate recent development trends and changing realities

2) 5yr Integrrted Development Plan (IDEP)

Preparation of Naivasha IDEP 2019-2023 was guided by existing development plans including

CIDP 2018-2022,the MTP 2018-2022,lntegratedSpatial Plans and Kenya Vision 2030 as wellas

other relevant international commitments. The document is due for review.

3) 5yr Solid Waste Management Plan

This Naivasha Municipal Solid Waste Management Strategy (NMSWMS) seeks to establish a

common platform for action between

manogement ln tho MunicipalitY.
stakeholders to improve systematically

Strnlcgy ltry6 thc frarnerwork for irnprowedThe

waste
\,vasto

management. The document was therefore prepared through intensive stakeholder engagement

xv
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4) 21 No. Draft reviewed BY-Laws
..fhe Ir/lulliolpality draftod thc llbovo by-larwc bogcd on tllc doftlnct \lunicipal council by-lar^,r and

other county legislation. The by-laws are due for discussion with office of County Attorney before

seeking necessary approvals.

5)Performance Contract

Naivasha Municipality Performance contract is due lbr execution between the CECM Lands,

Physical Planning, Housing and urban Development. The plan is already under implementation

based on Municipality work Plan.

'l'he municipal Management is recommending the following actions to accelerate and improve

service delivery

a) Need for delegation of functions in line with the Municipal Charter and UACA (Urban

Areas and Cities Act)

b) Recruitment or transfbr of key technical staff in order to enhance technical capacity and

service deliver through units of the Municipality Structure.

c) Enhanced budget support, capacity building and training of Municipal Board and

Municipality staff

1fi &1,
9(

ntr9

D
mc: iel Mbogo Ndiritu

City/Municipality Manager

xvl
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ment of Performance against Predetermined objectivcs for the FY 202212023

lopment objectives of Naivasha Municipality during the financial year were

.To dminister the affairs of Municipality

rTo the Municipal Administration

rTo municipality finances

rTo prove municipal infrastructure

oTo aintain a healthy municipality

. Toi prove communlty awareness

oTo mote economic prosperttY

f'lclo'rv we ide the progress on attaining the stated ohrjectives

PROGRAMME I : Administration, planning and support services

2l by-laws
drafted, 32 board

resolutions made

number of board
resolutions made,

number ofdraft by-
delive

To ensure

effective and

efficient service

n and
To Administer
the affairs of
Municipality

Administrat
Planning

l4 casual
workers hired for
environmental
work in the
municipality,
four training
workshops
conducted

number of casual
workers h ired, number
of trainings done

To ensure a

motivated,
equipped and

trained
municipal
workforce

lces
To staff the
Munic ipal
Adm in istration

Personnel S

there were four
finance
comm ittee
meetings held

number of finance
committee held

To ensure the
municipality
has functioning
financial
A ratus

lces
To manage
mun icipa lity
finances

Financial Se

PROGRAMME 2: Naivasha Munici I Serviccs

xvl I

PerformanceIndicatorOutcomeObjectiveProgranr

laws drafted,
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Planning and

Infrastructure

To irnprove
mun ic ipal
in frastructure

To ensure a

well-planned
municipalitY
with adequate
social facilities
for Residents

nurnber of markets
built, number of
municlpal Parks
bu ilt/rehabilitated,
length of roads

tarmacked/murrammed,
length of drainage
constructed, length of
pedestrian walkwaY

constructed

one nrunicipal
market
constructed, one
mun icipal park
rehabilitated,3.T
km access roads

under
improvement to
bitumen
standards in
lakeview estate,

one box drainage
constructed from
park to the
Ken atta avenue

4km drainage
cleaned, l5 tons
solid waste

collected

amount of solid waste

collected, number of
skip bins procured in

use, length of drainage
cleaned

To ensure a

healthy living
environment for
municipal
residents

To maintain a

healthy
m un icipality

Environmental
Management and

Sanitation

3 public
participation
events held in

conjunction with

department of

ec0n0nllc

lannin

number of communitY

alvareness events held

To ensure
rnunicipal

residents are

rvell infonned

To improve
conrntunity

awareness

Naivasha Social

Services

number of consultative
meotings with
rtakelrolders

To irnprove the
investment
cnvironn, ent in
thc
mun icipalitY

To promote
economic
prospority

Tourism, I !rvestlnent
and Trade

xvlll

County Government of Nakuru

Naivasha MuniciPalitY

two consultative
meetings held
with lake
Naivasha
growers
association
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8. Corporate Governance Statement

Process of appointment of Board Membcrs

l. Nomination or Selection: Potential candidates for the board are nominated through various

channels, such as public nominations, political parties, civic organizations, or other

relerrant bodies.

2. Application and Screening: Candidates typically submit their applications or nominations

along with relevant qualifications and experience. A screening process may be conducted

to ensure that candidates meet the necessary criteria.

3. Interview or Assessment: Shortlisted candidates may undergo interviews or assessments to

cvaluate their suitability for the position. This could involve cvaluating thcir skills,

knowledge, and understanding of the responsibilities associated with being a board

member.

4. Selection: Based on the assessment, a selection committee or relevant authority may choose

the candidates who will be appointed to the board. The selection process may involve

voting or consensus among committee rnembers.

5. Appointment: The selected candidates are ofticially appointed as board members through

an oflicial appointment letter or similar formal documentation. The appointment may be

subject to approval by higher-level authorities or governing bodies'

Removal of Board Members

L Resignation: A board member may choose to resign from their position voluntarily for

personal or professional reasons. They would submit a formal resignation letter to the

appointing authority.

2. YoteOf No Contidence: The county assembly may hold a vote of no confidence against a

board member due to issues like misconduct, negligence, or failure to perform their duties

effectlvely. If a majority votes in favor, the board member may be removed'

xlx
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3. Violation of Terms or Laws: If a board member violates the terms of their appointment or

relevantlaws,trreymaybesubjecttorernovalthroughlegalordisciplinaryprocedures.

4. Expiration of Term: Board members may serve a specified term' after which they may need

to be reappointed or replaced. Ifnot reappointed, their position becomes vacant.

5. Impeachment or Legal Proceedings: In some cases, a board member may face

impeachment or legal proceedings due to serious violations of the law, corruption, or other

unethical conduct. If found guilty, they may be removed from office.

The roles and functions of the rnunicipal board members are as outlined

l. Participating in the formulation and establishment of policies and strategies to guide

the municipality's growth, development, and service delivery'

2. Reviewing and approving the municipality's budget, ensuring financial resources

are allocated etliciently and effectively to meet the municipality's goals and

priorities.

3. Overseeing and contributing to the planning and development of intiastructure'

sorwicos, and faailitioo to irnprowo ths oworcll r^roll-boing and quality of life for

residents.

4.EnsuringthatthemunicipalityoPeratesincornpliancewithlocal'state/provincial'

and national laws, regulations, and guidelines relevant to local governance and

administration.

5. Representing the interests and concerns ofconstituents to higher-level government

bodies, advocating for necessary resources and support for the municipality'

6. Engaging with the community to understand their needs, concems, and aspirations,

and incorporating this feedback into decision-making processes'

7. Upholding principles of transparency and accountability by providing access to

information, ensuring propcr reporting mechanisms, and fostering ethical conduct'

g. overseeing and evaluating the performance of municipal staff, including the

municipal manager or chief executive officer, and providing guidance and

direction.

XX
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cific needs and knowledge gaps of each board member to tailor training programs

e

Ensuring compliance with legal and policy requirements in all municipal

operations, contracts, and agreements.

Collaborating with relevant authorities to plan and respond to emergencies, natural

disasters, and other crises to ensure the safety and well-being of the municipality's

residents.

Overseeing the provision of essential public services such as water, sanitation,

waste management, transportation, and public health, ensuring they meet the needs

of the community.

Promoting and implementing measures to ensure sustainable environmental

practices, including waste reduction, energy efficiency, and conservation ofnatural

resources.

Collaborating with other municipalities. govemment agencies' non-profit

organizatlons, and Privatc sector cntitlcs to addrcss comtrlon chollcngcs and

promote regional developmcnt.

To improve dnd maintain service delivery, the board members undergo training in the fonn of the

following:

-Appointment Orientation

Provide pro ctive board members with information about the municipality' its structure,

functions, icies, and challenges. This can help them make an informed decision before

accepting the osition

Orientation Upon Appointment

Conduct an o entation program immediately after appointment to familiarizeboard members with

lheir roles, ponsibilities, legal obligations, and code of conduct. Explain the municipality's

and values to ensure alignment with the board's actions

nlng

vtslon, mlssr

T

Assess the s

accordingly. ffer training modules on relevant topics, such as municipal govemance' financial

management, egal frameworks, community engagement. and strategic planning
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Workshops and Seminars:

Anange workshops, Seminars, and webinars with experts, practitioners. and seasoned board

members to provide practical insights and experiences. Encourage participation in conferences

related to municipal Sovernance for exposure to emerging trends and bcst practices'

The municipality in the financial year 2022/2023 held tbur f-ull board meetings, two special board

meetings and held committee rneetings for its four committees namely:

l. Municipal services committee - 4 meetings

2. Finance and administration comrnittee - 4 meetings

3. Tourism and social services cot'nmittee - 2 meetings

4. Infrastructure and investment committee - 2 meetings

The Municipality is committed to the Ibllowing standards of service

L Scrvice euality: 'I'o deliver scrvices of tlrc highest quality that n"reet or exceeds the necds of the

municipal residents

2. Problonr Resolr.rtion: rrzo plodge to rrzork diligontly to reeolwe rnunicipel residents' concernS it tO

their satisfaction within a reasonable timeframe.

3. Accessibility: We are comrnitted to rnaking our services accessible to all, regardless of abilities

or circumstances.

4. public Education: We commit to provide with necessary information and resources to help you

make informed decisions about our services'

5. Ethical Conduct: We conduct our business with integrity, honesty, and professionalism,

ensuring compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

6. Community Engagement: We actively engage with the community and contribute to its well-

being through various initiatives and partnerships.

7. Environmental Responsibility: We are committed to environmentally responsible practices and

aim to minimize our environmental footprint.
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l. Mana ent Discussion and Analysis

The follo g discussion and analysis of the financial and operational performance of Naivasha
provides an overview of municipal activities and results for the fiscal year endedMunicipal

3010612023 1'his Management Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunction with the

accompall g financial statements and notes.

Financia I ghlights

The munic Iity received a total budget allocation of Kshs 341,523,839 from the county
governmen of Nakuru which was allocated as per the chart below

amount

Administration and PlanninB La349,28O.OO

Personnel Servlces 9,3Aa,7A7.OO

Financial Services 600,000.00

Pla nninB and lnfrastructure 37O,585,772-0O

Environmental Management and Sanitatlcn 900,000.00

Naivasha Social Services 9O0,000.0O

Tourism, lnvestment and T.ade 8OO,OOO.OO

re for the year was as follows:

amount spent

- Admi ration and Planning LO,142,248.4

Finan lServices 350,000

. Enviro mental Management and Sanitation 500,000

. Touris investment and lnfrastructure 0

,' Personell Services 7,183,488

Planning and lnfrastructu re 195,110,521.02

E Naivasha Social Services 720,000
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rating exPenditures atnounted to kslts 208,253,601, ret

ent projects.

lecting iuvestments tn
Total oPe

infrastructure, public sat'etY, and community develoPm

Key Initiatives and Achievements

l. Infrastructure Developrnent and Maintenance

Duringthefiscalyear,theMunicipatitycontinueditsfocusonenhancingcriticalintiastructure
Notable achievements include:

. Construction of Municipal Park and abutting roads

. construction of Box Drainage culvert from municipal park to Kenyatta Avenue

o Construction of Naivasha wholesale Market

o Construction of 3.7 km roads to bitumen standards in Lakeview estate'

2. Environmental SustainabilitY

In line with our commitment to sustainability' environmental initiatives were pursued

concerns effectivelY

Launched a waste management program promoting solid waste collection recycling and reducing

landfill waste'

Implementedenergy-efficientmeasuresacrossmunicipalbuildings,reducingourcarbonfootprint
by 15%.

TheMunicipalityhiredcasualstafrtomaintainthedrainagefacilitiesinthemunicipality

Challenges and Future Outlook

l. Financial SustainabilitY

The Municipality ackno'wledges the challenge of maintaining tinancial sustainability amidst

rrrowinq demands for services and limited ..rour.",- Wt 
"rnui-n 

committed to prudcnt linancial

ffi#nri-ni ;nJ .*pto,ing revenue diversification strategies'

2. Community Engagement and Participation

Enhancingcommunityengagementisapriority.WeaimtofosteraStrongersenseofcommunity
by involving residents inilcision-making processes, seeking their input, and addressing their

3. RegulatorY ComPliance

Stayingcompliantwittrevolvinglawsand.regulationsremainscritical.Wewillcontinueto
monitor legal develop."*t unJ iaupt our policGs and procedures accordingly'
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ty remains dedicated to enhancing the quality of life for our residents. We are

effbcti ve financial stewardship, sustainable development, and fostering a vibrant and

ty. We express our gratitude to all stakeholders for their ongoing support

Conclusion

The Munici
committed
inclusive
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10. EnvironmentalAndSustainabilityReporting

l. Susttinability strategt and proJile

The draft Naivasha Municipality Sustainability Plan (NMSP), is a comprehensive

document that outlines a municipality's approach to achieving environmental, social, and

economic sustainability. It serves as a roadmap for addressing pressing sustainability

challcngos' onhanoo the quolity of lifc for rseidentg' and prornote reaponsible and resilient

comrnunity development. Ilere are the key components found in the Municipal

Sustainability Plan:

Vision: A Resilient, Inclusive and Vibrant Sustainablc Municipality

Key Focus Areas: The plan identifies specific areas of focus for sustainability efforts,

which often include:

. reducing carbon emissions, conserving natural resources, promoting clean energy,

and improving air and water quality.

. enhancing community well-being, affordable housing, healthcare, education, and

social equity.

. fostering economic growth, job creation, supporting local businesses, and economic

diversification.

Strategies and Initiatives: The plan outlines the strategies and initiatives the municipality

will undertake to achieve its sustainability goals. These could include:

xxvl

Baseline Assessment: A comprehensive assessment of the municipality's current

sustainability pcrforrnancc is being conducted. 'I'his sseessrnent includes the evaluation of

enrzironnrontol, sociol, and oconornic indicqtors to und€rstsnd the crrrr€rtt gtate of eff.rirs.

Indicators i|1cludc greenhousc gas emissions, cnergy consumption, waste generation, air

and water quality, poverty rates, unemployment, and economic development metrics.

Engagement with key stakeholders, including residents, businesses, community

organizations, and government agencies, is crucial. Stakeholder input is gathered through

surveys, public consultations, and other engagement rnethods to ensure that the plan

reflects the needs and desires of the community.
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Implementing energy effi ciency programs.

Developing green transportation infrastructure.

Promoting recycling and waste reduction.

Investing in affordable housing.

Enhancing public transportation.

Supporting local businesses and entrepreneurship.

Investing in renewable energy projects.

Strengthening social services and community engagement

2. Envbonmental performonce

The Municipality of Naivasha is committed to environmental sustainability and thc

mandate is expressed in the Municipal Charter. T.he Specific environmental goals and

objectives are defined to articulate rvhat the municipality aims to achieve in telms of
strstalnabi lity. These goals encompass areas such as air quality. water quality, waste

reduction, energy efficiency, biodiversity conservation, and more.

Legd nnd Regulatory Contplionce:1'he municipalig' has an obligation to adhere to all

relcvtnt cnvironrnental laws, rcgulations, and standards. This includcs conducting

environmental impact asscssnrcnts bcfore undertaking projects. It undcrscorcs the

municipality's commitnlent to meeting or exceeding these requirements.

Responsibilities ond Accountobility: T'he municipality has an environmental departmer.rt

staff'ed with an environnrental ofticer. a supervisor and support staff who engage in the

maintcnancc of grccnery and solid waste collcction and disposal in addition to thc regular

maintcnance of drains. In the financial year 2022/2023, the municipality collstructed thc

Naivasha nlrrnicipal park and drainage structures and intends to conduct a tree planting

exercise in the year 202312024.

Envirenmenlol Protecliol oncl Rcsource Conservatiort ' Thc municil'tality rnade efl'orts ttr

reducO energy consumption, conserve water, minirnize waste gcneration' and promotc

sustainable land use and development practices.

Environntenlol Etlucotion tttttl Aworenes.r.' Recognizing the inrportance of public

ecltrcatlon, the mtrnicipality emphasized ctlbrts to raisc environmental awarcncss. promotc

sustainability education, and engage residents in environmental initiatives.

xxvll
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3. Employee wefiare

The municipality hired a total of l4 casual workers in the financial year 2022/2023 of which a

total of 6 were women. The municipality followed the procedure for casual engagement after

getting authority from the county public service board. The Municipality has to its best efforts

followed the regulations of the labour act 2007 andthe accompanying occupation health and

sat'ety regulations.

4. Morket place Practices

The organisution should outline its ef/brts ttt"

Q Responsible compelitiotr proctice'

The municiPalitY undertakes to:

TransparencY and OPenness:

clearly define procurement rcquirements, criteria, and evaluation methods in tender docurnents to

provicle a lcvel playing field for all bidclers' Publiclv advertise opportunities, ensuring that

interested parties have equal access to infbrmation about tenders and procttrement processes'

Equal Treatment and Non-Discrimination:

Treat all potential bidders equally, without any bias or discrimination based on size' location'

orwnership, or other factors unrelated to qualifications and capabilitiea'

Conflict of Interest Management:

Establish and enforce clear conflict of interest policies to prevent conflicts among staff involved

in procurement proc€sses. Require disclosure ofany potential conflicts of interest by individuals

participating in the procurement process.

Ethical Conduct:

Uphold high ethical standards by prohibiting bribery, corruption, kickbacks, and any unethical

practices during the procurement process. Train staff involved in procurement on ethical conduct'

emphasizing the importance of integrity, honesty, and impartiality'

Fair Evaluation and Selection:

Develop evaluation criteria based on objective, measurable, and relevant factors that are directly

related to the project or service being procured. Ensure a well-defined evaluation process,

involving multiple evaluators to minimize bias and enhance fairness.

xxvlll
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C dentiality and Data Protection

Safeguard the confidentiality of sensitive bid information and protect bidder data in compliance

with applicable privacy laws and regulations.

Prunpt and Clear Communication:

Communicate procurement decisions promptly, providing clear feedback to unsuccessful bidders

on the reasons for their disqualification or non-selection.

Appeals and Dispute Resolution:

Establish a t0ansparent process for handling appeals and disputes related to procurement decisions,

ensuring thal bidders have an avenue to voice their concerns and seek resolution.

b) Responsible Supply choin and supplier relations

The municipality takes the following actions in this regard:

Clear Procurement Policies and Guidelines:

Develop and communicate clcar procrrrement policies and guidelines that outline

rnunicipality's expectations regarding rcsponsible supplicr conduct, ethical starrdards,

sustainable practices.

Supplicr Code of Conduct:

E$ablish a supplier code ofconduct that clearly aLticulates expected behaviours, such as ethical

sourcing, environmental responsibility, fair labour practices, and compliance with relevant laws

and regulations.

Transparency and Communication :

Maintain open and transparent communication with suppliers to ensure they fully understand the

municipality's requirements, expectations, and performance metrics.

Fair rnd Equitable Treatment:

the

and

Treat all suppl

level playing I

Coml

Encourage cot

underrepresen

liers fairly and equitably, regardless oftheir size, location, or ownership, ensuring a

freld in procurement processes.

[etitive Bidding and Supplier Diversity:

lrpetition and supplier diversity by regularly seeking new vendors, especially from
I

ied groups, to promote a diverse and inclusive supplier base'

xxlx
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Confl ict Resolution Mechanism:

Establish a clear and fair process for addressing disputes or conflicts that may arise during the

course of the relationship, ensuring conflicts are resolved swiftly and amicably.

Payment'ferms and Timely Payments:

Adhere to agreed payment terms and make timely payments to suppliers 1o maintain a positive

rclationship and ensure suppliers' financial sustainability'

c) Responsible markeling and advertisement

The n-runicipality uses national advertisers to maximize reach and ensure all stakeholders have

equal rights to information.

d) Producl stewardshiP

By ilrplementing these measures, a municipality can actively work to safeguard consumel rights

and interests, plomoting a fbir and ethical marketplace within its jurisdiction'

1. Education and Awareness Pl'ogralns:

Cor1duct educational carnpaigns and workshops to inforrn consulners about their rights'

responsibilities, and avenues for complaint redressal'

2. Regular InsPections and Quality Control:

Implement routine inspections of businesses to ensure compliance with quality standards and

consumer protection laws, especially in sectors such as food' healthcare, and consumer goods'

3. Enforcing Legal ComPliance:

Collaborate with relevant authorities to enforce laws and regulations that protect consumer rights,

taking legal action against violators when necessary.

4. Resolution of Consumer Complaints:

Establish a mechanism for consumers to file complaints, investigate grievances, and mediate

disputes between consumers and businesses to ensure fair resolution.

5. Product Safety Standards:

Advocate for and enforce strict safety standards for products sold within the municipality to protect

consumers from unsafe or harmful goods.

6. Collaboration with Consumer Organizations:

xxx
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Partner wi consumer organizations to jointly conduct awareness campaigns, educational

workshops on consumer rights and responsibilities. Advocate for strong regulations

that protect consumers in the online marketplace, including data privacy, secureand practi

transaction and clear product information

7. Co unily Engogemenls

Acknowled ng the importance of community engagement and collaboration, the municipality

involved re dents, businesses, community organizations, and other stakeholders in environmental

decision- ng and initiatives. In the financial year 2022120233 the Municipality partnered with

the Lake N vasha Growers' Association to do greening and botanical beautification within

Naivasha to

xxxl
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Ilcport of thc CitylMunicipati$r Board Membcrs

The Board Members submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended June 30, 2023 which show the state of the citylMunicipality affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Naivasha Municipality continue to be:

a) promotion, regulation and provision of refuse collection and solid waste management

Services.

b) promotion and provision of water and sanitation services and infrastructure (in areas within

the Municipality not served by the Water and Sanitation provider)

c) Construction, Maintenance of Urban roads and associated infrastructure

d) Construction, Maintenance of storm drainage and flood controls

e) Construction, Maintenance of walkways and other non-motorized transport infrastructure

0 Con$ruction. I4aintenance ofrecreationalparks and green spaces

g) Construction, Maintenance of street lighting

h) Construction, Maintenance and regulation of traffic controls and parking facilities

i) Construction, Maintenance of bus stands and taxi stands

j) Regulation of outdoor advertising

k) Construction, Maintenance and regulation of municipal markets and abattoirs

l) Construction, Maintenance of fire stations, provision of firefighting services' emergency

preparedness and disaster management

m) Promotion and regulation of municipal sports and cultural activities

n) Regulation and provision of animal control and welfare

o) Enforcement of municipal plans and development controls

p) Municipal administration services (including maintenance of administrative offices)

q) Promoting infrastructural development and services within municipality.

r) Any other functions as may be delegated by the County Government

1l
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The

xii

ce of the city/Municipality for the year ended June 30,2023 are set out on page

Audito

Perfo cc

The A

accord

Board bers

The m bers of the Board who served during the year are shown on page viii.

General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Naivasha Municipality in

with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015. In

lieu of above the office of the auditor general has conducted the audit

Bv Ord of the Board

Ifi tugfs

Name:

Secreta ofthe Board

xxxill
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12, StatementofManagement'sResp0nsibilities

section l80 of the Public Finance Managernent /]Ict,2Ol2 requires that, at the end ofeach financial

year, the Accounting Officer of the City/Municipality established by Urban Areas and Cities Act

No. I3 of 201 I shall prepare financial statements in accordance with the standards and formats

prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board'

The Naivasha Municipality manager is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the

City/Municipality's linancial statements, which give a true and fbir view of the state o1 affairs of the

City/Municipality for and as at the end of the financial year ended on June 30, 2023' This

responsibility includes:

(i)maintaining adequate financial rnanagernent arrangements and ensuring that these Continue to be

effective throughout the reporting period.

(ii) Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the NAIVASHA Municipality,

(iii)I)osigning, irnpternenting and rn.rintaining internal controls relevant to the PreParation and fair

presentation of the financial staternents, and ensuring that they are free frorn material rnisstatements.

whether due to error or fraud,

(iv)Safeguarding the assets of the City/Municipality,

(v)Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and

(vi)Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances'

xxxlv

The NAIVASHA Municipality Manager accepts responsibility for the financial statements, which

have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent

judgments and estimates, in conformity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

(IpSAS), and in the manner required by the PFM AcL2012 and Llrban Areas and Cities Act No.

13 of 2011. The NAIVASHA Municipality Manager is of the opinion that the financial statements

give a true and fair view of the state of CitylMunicipality's transactions during the financial year

ended June 30,2023, and the financial position as at that date.
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The NAIV HA Municipality Manager further confirms the completeness of the accounttng

have been relied upon in the preparation of financial statements as well as the

adequacy the systems of internal financial control

In prepari the financial statements, the Directors have assessed the Fund's ability to continue as

a golng (disclosed. erc applicable, molters relating tu lhe use oJ going concern basis of

preparal io t he ./ina n c ial s t a t e me nt s) OR

Nothing come to the attention of the City/Municipality Manager to indicate that the

City/Muni ty will not remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date

of this

Approval the fi nancial statements

The Naiv Municipal's financial statements were approved by the Board on l2tl' September 2023

its behalf by:and signed

the ended June 30, 2023

lt, i\ /..-,1 , i,,iLii'ii(,
I t'-l
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Name:

Chairpers ofthe Board

Name:

Accounting officer ofthe Board
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

Enha nc' i ng A t'cou nl u h i I il't'

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON NAIVASHA MUNICIPALITY FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023. COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF NAKURU

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements;

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for ordedy, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governane systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Managemenl Act,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverse Opinion

I have audlted the accompanying financialstatements of Naivasha Municipality - County
Government of Nakuru set out on pages 1 lo 47, which comprise of the statement of
financial position as at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of financial performance,

Report of the Auditor-General on Naivasha Municipality for the yeor ended 30 June,2023 - County Governmenl of
Nakuru



statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015.
I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of Naivasha Municipality as at 30 June, 2023 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and do not comply with the Urban
Areas and Cities No. 13 of 2011 (Amended Act, 2019), and the Public Finance
Management 4ct,2012.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. lnaccuracies in the Financia! Statements

Review of financial statements submitted for audit revealed the following inaccuracies;

i. The statement of changes in net assets for the year ended 30 June, 2023 reflect nil
surplus/deficit for the year while the statement of financial performance reflects a
deficit of Kshs.1 95, 1 10,521.

ii. The report of the Municipal Manager reflects total expenditure budget of
Kshs.341,523,839 whereas the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts indicate final budget of Kshs.293,948,893 resulting in a variance of
Kshs.47,574,946 which has not been explained or reconciled.

iii. The report on Management discussion and analysis at page xxiii of the financial
statements indicated the Municipality received a total budget allocation of
Kshs.341,523,839 from the County Government of Nakuru. However, the statement
of financial performance reflects Nil transfer from the County Government.

iv. The statement of financial performance reflects expenditure on use of goods and
services expenditure of Kshs.195,110,521as disclosed in Note 12 to the financial
statements. However, the amount excludes recurrent expenditure paid from
equitable funds of Kshs. 1 2,481,548.

v. The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects expenditure
budget of Kshs.293,948,893. However, the statement does not indicate the
budgeted income to finance the expenditure. Further review of the approved budget
for County Government of Nakuru under Naivasha Municipality reveal that the
Municipalitywas allocated Kshs.36,554,320 for recurrent and Kshs.306,533,272
for development, alltotalling Kshs.343,087,592. The variance of Kshs.49,138,699
has not been reconciled. ln addition, the statement reflects expenditure budget of
Kshs.293,948,893 without any budgeted income.

Report of the Auditor-General on Naivosha Municipality for the year ended 30 June,2023 - County Government of
Nakuru
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ln the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of balances reflected in the
financialstatements could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Development Grants

The statement of changes in net assets reflects opening development grants balance as
at 1 July, 2022 of Kshs.293,948,893. However, supporting documents for the balance
were not provided for audit. Further, it is not clear how the balance changed from
Kshs.293,948,893 reflected as balance as at 1 July,2022 to the closing balance of
Kshs.65,396,780 as at 30 June, 2023.

ln the circumstances, the propriety, completeness and accuracy of development grants
could not be confirmed.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance

The statement of financial position reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.98,838,372 as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements. However, the
balance excluded a cash book balance of Kshs.34,864,054 in respect of the Naivasha
Municipality equitable share bank account.

Further, the Municipality operated a project bank account that was not an interest-bearing
account contrary to Clause 2.4.3 of the KUSP Financial Management Procedures
Manual, 2017 which states that the operations of a project bank account would be from
an interest-bearing account as per Treasury policies and PFM Act.

ln the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of cash and cash equivalent
balance of Kshs.98,838,372 could not be confirmed.

4. Presentation of Financial Statements

The Annual Report and financial statements submitted for audit had the following errors:

i. The title of the financial statements indicated "Municipality of Naivasha" instead of
"Naivasha Municipality" as per the annual reporting template.

ii. The table of content on page i indicated the statement of performance against
predetermined objectives, the statement of financial performance, statement of
financial position, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flow and
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the years ended 20xx
instead of 2023.

iii. The statement of management responsibilities was not signed by the Chairperson
of the Board. Further, the name of the accounting officerwas not indicated against
the signature.

iv. The leport of the City/Municipality Board Members was signed by the Secretary of
the Board. However, the name of the Secretary was not indicated against the
signature.

Report of the Auditor-General on Naivasha Municipality for the year ended 30 June,2023 - County Government of
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v. Fiduciary oversight arrangements at page vi of the financial statements under
paragraph (i) indicated the existence of an audit and risk management committee.
However, no evidence was provided to show the existence or appointments of such
committee through appointment letters. Further, no audit and risk management
committee reports were availed for audit verification.

vi. The financial statements are not sequentially numbered from page xi onwards.

vii. The Board Chairpersons report at page xiv of the financial statements indicated that
the municipal has developed and implemented the following nine tools, 20 year
integrated strategic urban development plan, S-year integrated development plan,
S-year solid waste management plan, 21No draft reviewed by laws. Naivasha
regeneration plan 2020, draft guidelines for allocation of market stalls, draft
guidelines for management of municipality public sanitation facilities and draft
performance contract. However, no evidence was provided to show that the above
were ever developed and implemented.

viii.Environmental and sustainability reporting paragraph 3, on employee welfare, the
report indicated that the Municipality hired a total of fourteen (14) casual workers.
However, the statement of financial performance indicated Nil employee costs.

ix. The chairperson of the Board did not indicate his name and sign the financial
statements at page xxxv.

ln the circumstances, the financial statements presented for audit do not comply with the
Public Sector Accounting Standards reporting guidelines for June, 2023.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSA|s). I am independent of the Naivasha Municipality Management
in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit mafters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution and based on the audit procedures
performed, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Conclusion on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my
report, I confirm that public resources have not been applied lavufully and in an effective
way.

Report of the Auditor-General on Naivasha Municipality for the year ended 30 June,202j - County Government of
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Basis for Conclusion

1. NonCompliance with Law on Independence of Naivasha Municipality

Naivasha Municipality was granted Municipality Charter on 13 February, 2019 which
granted operational independence from the County Government of Nakuru. However, the
County Government has continued to perform functions which were transferred to the
Municipality as provided for through Gazette Notice No. 3844 dated 16/03/2023 such as
(a) Development controls (development approvals, development compliance
surveillance, enforcement and control of outdoor advertisement) (b) Solid waste
management and (c) On Street Parking. Further, the Municipality's budget was prepared
and controlled by the County Executive and there was no budget approval by the
MunicipalityBoard.Thisiscontraventionof Section 12(1)of theUrbanAreasandCities
Act, 2011, which states that the Management of a Municipality shall be vested in the
County Government and administered on its behalf by a Board, a Manager and staff
constituted and appointed in accordance with the Act.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Non-Compliance with Law on Integrated Development Plan

The Board of Municipality of Naivasha failed to develop and adopt a 20 year lntegrated
strategic urban development plan and S-year lntegrated development plan contrary to
Section 20(1)of the Urban Areas and Cities Act, 2011 which states that subject to the
provisions of this Act, a Board of any Municipality or Municipality shall formulate and
implement an integrated development plan.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Non-Compliance with the Grant Conditions

Review of records revealed that the Municipality had a Manager, Head of Accounting Unit
and an administrator being the key personnel who held office during the year under
review. However, their salaries were not disclosed in the financial statements contrary to
Section 4.2 of the Kenya Urban Support Programme Operations Manual, under the
minimum condition number UDG/MC-3 which requires a Municipality to have in place a
fully functional municipal administration including a Municipal Manager together will all
staff whose salaries are to be met from the Municipal budget vote.

ln the circtrmstance, the Management was in breach of the law.

4. Non-Compliance with the Procurement Laws

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services amount of
Kshs.195,110,521 as disclosed in Note 12 to the financial statements. The following
procurement irregularities were noted;

i. Examination of the supporting procurement documents revealed that the Evaluation
Comrnittee Members appointed by the Accounting Officer were not staff members
from within the Municipality of Naivasha. This was contrary to Section 46(1)of tire
Public Procurement and Asset DisposalAct, 2015.
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ii. The amount includes an amount of Kshs.29,324,247 paid to Construction Company
for the proposed tarmacking of lake view roads. However, review of the procUrement
records revealed that the Company was issued with notification of award on 91312022
while the contract agreement was signed on 161312022 which is 8 days from the date
of award contrary to Section 135(3) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal
Act, 2015 which states that written contract shall be entered into within the period
specified in the notification but not before fourteen days have elapsed following the
giving of that notification provided that a contract shall be signed within the tender
validity period.

iii. TheamountincludesKshs.6,l3l,l03paidtoacontractorasfinalretentionmoneyfor
construction of Naivasha Market phasel . Another contractor was also contracted at
a contract sum of Kshs.302,973,477 lo construct Naivasha Market Phase 2. The
contract sum included an amount of Kshs.50,000,000 as provisional amount for
completion of phase 1 of the project which was not completed by the first contractor.
There is no evidence that the Municipality seized the performance security to remedy
the entity of the loss occasioned from the incomplete works.

iv. The Board entered into a contract with a contractor on 1 July, 2021 for a construction
project at a contract cost of Kshs.260,000,000. The contract sum was revised
downwards by Kshs.50,000,000. The revision was fifteen (15) days after the contract
was signed contrary to Section 139(4) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal
Act, 2015 which states that any variation of a contract shall only be considered after
twelve months from the date of signing the contract.

ln the circumstances, value for money on expenditure on use of goods and services of
Kshs.195,110,521 could not be confirmed. Further, Management was in breach of the
law.

5. Lack of Municipality Budget Approval

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflect expenditure budget of
Kshs.293,948,893. However, approval of the budget as required by Section 20(1) of the
Urban Areas and Cities Act, 2011 which states that subject to the provisions of this Act a
board of any city or municipality shall prepare and submit its annual budget estimates to
the relevant County Treasury for consideration and submission to the County Assembly
was not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

Report of the Auditor-General on Naivasha Municipality for the year ended 30 June,2023 - County Government of
Nakuru

6

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAl) 4000. The standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.



REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AN D GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and based on the audit
procedures performed, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis
for Conclusion on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
section of my report, I confirm that internal controls, risk management and governance
were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Lack of Audit Committee Function

During the year under review the Naivasha Municipality Board did not have an Audit
Committee in place. This was contrary to Regulation 167 (1) of the Public Finance
Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015 which requires each County
Government entity to establish an audit committee. Further, the head of internal audit
reports directly to the accounting officer hence the operational independence of the
internal audit unit could not be guaranteed. ln addition, there was no follow-up on the
implementation of the recommendations of internal and external auditors.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of the Board with regard to governance and
assurance could not be confirmed.

2. Lack of a Risk Management Policy

The Municipality Manager had not put in place a risk management policy, strategies and
a risk registerto mitigate against risk. This is in contravention of Regulation 158 (1)(a)
and (b) of the Public Finance Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015
which requires the Accounting Officer to ensure that the County Government entity
develops risk management strategies, which include fraud prevention mechanism; and a
system of risk management and internal control that builds robust business operations.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of the Board with regard to risk management
could not be confirmed.

3. Lack of lT Strategy Committee

Review of information technology revealed that the Municipality has not established an
lT strategy committee and also lacked approved lT strategic plan which provide
governance on information technology matters, lT strategic plan and lT security policy.
Further the Municipality lacks back-up retention strategy and there are no formal
documented and approved processes to manage upgrades. ln addition, the Municipality
lacks a formal documented emergency procedure to guide in case of an emergency.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of Management strategy
technology and associated controls could not be confirmed.

on information
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4. Weak lnternal Controls Over Cash Management

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls) 2315 and 2330. The standards require that I plan and perform
the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all
material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Municipality's ability to continue to sustain its services , disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Municipality or cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act,2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Municipality's
financial reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors
compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective
processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation
to governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of
the control environment.

Review of the payment vouchers and associated transaction cycle revealed weak internal
controls as the payment voucher preparer was the same person who examined the
vouchers. Further the payment vouchers were not numbered contrary to Regulation 104
(1) of the Public Finance Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls over cash management could
not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-General on Naivasha Municipolity for the year ended 30 June,2023 - County Government of
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AuditorGeneral's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

a
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Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in tlG circumstances and for the purpose of
giving an assurance on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Municipality's ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Municipality
to cease to continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Municipality to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances

a

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA a BS

Nairobi

25 March,2O24
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NAIVASHA Municipality
County Government of NAKURU
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year enderl June 30, 2023

l4- Statement of Financial Performance for The Year Ended 30 June 2023.

Finance costs

Depreciation and atttottizatrott l6

The notes set out

financial statemen tS were

fi
'oO

9f

Name: Name: V\fte--l \t-A-tt3i''r-[ A

flcnd of Flnancc

ICPAK M/l'Jo 1')-\\ A

on pages 7 to 42 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. The entity

app
ttr

roved on 24tt' July 2023 and signed by
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u

o
$D

i
tl

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

6Transfers from the County Government

7Public contributions and donations

8Levies Fines and Penalties

IOther revenues (Specrfu)

t0Interest income

Miscellaneous lncome ll

Total revenue

Expenditure
l2 to,52t .O2195,

t3StafI costs

l4Board expenses

r5

l1Repairs and maintenance

t 95, 1 10,52 1 .02Total expenses

Other gains/losses

l8Gain/loss on disposal of assets

(195,1 10,521.02)Surplus/(deficit) for thc Period

cltylM unlcl p8 llty Msn.tgcr

F.Y.2A22D023

I(shs.
I:'r

Revenue from exchangc transactions

Use of goods and services



Annuol Reltorl and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

15. Statement of Financial Position as At 30 June 2023

Asscts

Currcnt assets

98,838,372.60l9Cash and cash equivalents

20Receivables from exchange transactions

21Receivables fronr Non- exchange transactions

22Prepayrnents

23Inventories
98,838,372.60Total currcnt assets

Non-currcnt asscts

24Property, plant, and equipment

25lntangible assets

Total Non-current Asscts

98,83 8,3 72.60Total assets

Llabllltles
Current liabilities

33,44t,592.f626Trade and other payables

27

28Provisions

29Borrowings

30Employee benefi t obligations

3l[)e f-e rrcd lncorne

32Social Benefits

33,44t,592.36Total current liabilities

Non-cu rrcnt liabilities
28Provisions

29Borrowings

30Non-current employee benefit obligation

3lDeferred lncotne

32Social Bcneflts

33,44t,592.36Total Iiabilitics

2

County Government of Nakuru
Na ivas lta M u n icipa I ity

Refundable deposits from customers
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County Go rnment of Nakuru
Noivasha nicipality
Annuol Re rt and Finonciol Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part of

the financial statements. The entity financial statements were approve d on 27th July 2023 and signed

by

I

,,'llamc:

City/Mu nici palitl' Manager

Date:

.1..,Q3r?s....

Name: lvl Fr I2-- l \z-,. ri n r'' -{ fJ

Head ofFinance

ICPAK It{/No t'}-\{qa-

P31s; }ja-\ o'+ I 3-o 13

'i1-"y

Comparative FY re.fers b the financial year preceding the current year

Net assets

65,396,780.24

Reserves

Accurnulated surplus

65,396,780.24Total net assets and liabilities

)

FY292112on
a-.,:.:-d-:,1:rLli-:.,:,
+j€tr.r- r+- lr.r--i
--, ,,r..1(3hS.-.. . :
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County Governnrunl of l'uluru
Naivasho Municipn

Annuol Report ond

lilv
Finsnciol Slotements for the Yer enrlerl June 30,2023

16. Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the Ye ar Ended 30 June 2023

The bulance as at 3Ot' June 2023 consfitute arnounts lor conlracled works for which cerlirtcarcs of completion are yet

tobeissuedblllheContractors.AlllheamottnlisinrhefornofbankdepositattheBankaforementioned.

Bal as at I July 2021

SurpluV(deticit) tbr the Year

Funds receivcd during thc Year

Revaluatiorr gairr

Ilal as at 3O .lun 2O22

293,948,893.60293,948,893.60Bal as at l,luly 2022

SurpluV(deticit) lor the Yeat

Funds received dtrring the Year

Revaluation gain
65'396,74(J.2465,31)6,780.24Ilalance as at 30.rune 2023
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NA IVASIIA Municipality
County Governmenl of NAKURU
Annuol Report and Financial Statemenls for the yeor enderl June 30, 2023

17. Statement Of Cash Flows for Thc Ycar Ended 30 June 2023

5

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Transfers from the County Government

Public contributions and donations

Interest received

Miscellaneous receipts (Spe c ifu)

Total Receipts

Payments
195,1 10,52 1 .02(Jse of goods and services

Staff costs
Board expcnscs

Irinancc costs

195.110,521 0lTotalPaymcnts

(r95,Ir0,521 02

11
JJNet cash flows from operating activitics

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase ofPPE & intangible assets

Proceeds frour sale ofPPE

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Receipts from Capital grants

Proceeds fiom borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash flows used in financing activities

(195,110,521.02
)

Net increas
equivalents

decrease) in cash & cash

293,94a,a93 .60l9Cash And Cash Equivalents At I July
9a,83a,642.38l9Cash And Cesh Equ ivalents At 30 June

Cfinparati,t F\refers lo lhe financial year preceding the cu*enl year'

FY202112022Fv 2022na23
Dai.-qp!'.s

Not



Coungt Government of NAKURU
Annuol Report ond Financial Slolementsfor the yeor ended June 30,2023

18. Statement of Comparison of Budget & Actual Amounts for the Year ended 3O June 2023

a b c=(a+b) d s=1c_d) f=d/c

Reven ue Kshs. Kshs. Kshs. Ks hs.

Transfers from the County
Govemment

0%

Public contributions and donations 0%

lnterest income 0%

M iscel laneous income (s p e c ifu) 0%

0%Total Revenue

Expenses

293,948,893.60 195,110,521.02 I8,83 8,3 72.58 66%Use of goods and services 293,948,893.60

0%Board expenses

0%Staff Costs

0%Finance costs

195,110,521.02 98,838,372.59 66'h293,948,893.60 293,948,893.60Total Expenditure
( 195,110,521.02

)

(98,838J72.58) 66%

(293,948,893.60)(293,948,893.60)
Surplus for the period

195,110,521.02 98,838,372.58 66.293,948,893.60293,948,893.60Capital Expenditure

6

Origintl birrlget ll bLqsqt

Kslis.

basil .. .'
Kshsl I

Attual
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County Government of
NAIVASIIA Municipal,
Annuol Report and Fin

NAKURU
ily
ancial Slotements fortheyear endcd Ju,te 30,2023

19. Notes to the Financial Statements

l. General Information

NAIVASHA Municipality is established by and derives its authority and accountability frotn

the Areas and cities Act. The city/Municipality is under the NAKURU County

nt and is domiciled in KenYa.

s principal activity is Urban Area Management including infrastructure development

Urban

Govern

The enl

applied

nlc

i0.

le

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost baSis except for the

measuretrlent at re-valued amounts of ccrtain itcms ol' proPcrty, plant and cquiptnerrt'

rrrarkctablc sccuritica ond finoncial instrunrcnts at foir volttc, irl1poired asgots ot tlroir oetirr-r0ted

recoverable amounts. and actuariallv determined liabilities at their present value. The

preparation of financial statements in conformity u,ith International Public Sector Accorrnting

Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. [t also requires management

to exercise judgment in the process of applying the Naivosha Municipality accounting policies'

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or where assumptions and

estimateg are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5 of these financial

statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the

functional and reporting currency of lhe entiq'.

2. Sta ment of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The fina
Corporat

Accounti

ncial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act' the State

bns Act (lncludc ony <>tlter alqttlcable l"8al:llatl"n)' qnd lntErnatlonal Pulrllc Sootor

g Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently

all the years presented.
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County Governnrcnt of NAKURU

;i AIl ASH A M uniciPalitY

Annuul Report und F i nunc ial Slutenrc nls fttrlhayear ended June 30,2023

3 Application of New and revised stnndards (IPSAS)

i. New anel amended slan<Jards and inlerpretations in is'sue elfective in the yeor ended

30 June 2023.

Applicable: I't JanuarY 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant

and useful information to users of financial statements for their

assessmentoftheamounts,timinganduncertaintyofanEntity's

future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, bY:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financialassetsthatconsidersthecharacteristicsoftheasset's

cash florrs and the objective for rvhich the aset is held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to

impairment testing: and

. APPlying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance'

The model develops a strong link between an Entity's risk

management strategies and the accounting treatment for

instruments held as part of the risk management strategy'

IPSAS 4l: Financial

lnstruments

Applicable: l't January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance' faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits.'Ihe information provided should help users ofthe financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity'

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

8
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Annual ePort and Financial Statcments ortheyeor endctl Junc 30,2023

Amend

Other

resultin

IPSAS

Instrum

ents to

IPSAS

from

, Financial

ts

4l

en

Applicable: lst JanuarY 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples

on hedging and crcdlt rirk whlch wcrc lnadvortontly C'mlrt(,d

when TPSAS 4l was issucd.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30' to uPdatc the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts lvhich rvere

inadvertently omitted wherr IPSAS 4i was issued'

d) Amendrnenh to IPSAS 33. to update the guidance on

classifying financial instruments on initial adoption of

accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 4l was issued.

Appticable I't JanuarY 2023

t IPSAS 22 Disclosttre of Financial Infornration about the General

Government Sector. Amendments to refer to the latest System of

National Accounts (SNA 2008).

o IPSAS 39; Employee Beneifit.s Now deletes the term composite

social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS'

o IPSAS 29; Financial inslrument'\" Recotnition ancl Measurenrcnl

Starrdard no longer included in the 2O23 IPSAS handbook as it is

now superscdcd by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from l*tJanttary

2023.

anrcnded slandard's dnd i nlc rprelal ions in ts'sue but nol tel elfect ive in the Year

ne 2023

Other im rovements

to IPSAS

ii. New a

endcd 30

I

(b) The key features ofthe operation o

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows'

fthose social benefit schemes;

Effective date and imPact:Standard



County Governnrcnl of NAKURU

N.4 IV'.4 S Ii A M u nic i pt I ity

Annuul Reporl und Fittonciul Stulemenls fitr lhe 1'aur entlatl lutre 30, 2023

Appllcable Ist fanuarY 2025

Thc standard sets out the principles fbr the recognition, tneasurement'

presentation, and disclosure ofleases. The objective is to ensure that lessees

and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully

represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of

financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows of an Entity'

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

infbrmation on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 43

Applicable I't JanuarY 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that mcet ths criteria to be classified as held for sals to be measursd

at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the

depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria t0 be classified as held for sale to be presented

separately in the staternent of financial position and the results of

discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of

financial performance.

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Asscts Hsld

for Sale and

Discontinued

0perations

iii. Early adoption ofsrandards

The Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial

l0
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A nn ual rl and Finoncial Slalenrcnts the year ended June 30, 2023

(Noles lo fiuncial slstements conlin ued)

ficant Accounting Policics

nue recognition

ue from non-exchange transactions

m otlter governmenl enlilies

m non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at tair

cognized on obtaining control ofthe asset (cash, goods, services and property) if

is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service

that thcrc
rolated to the asset will flow to the Enfiry and can be measured reliably. To the extent

la a retatcd condltlon ottachcd tlrat worlld glva rlsc to a llablllty tc' roPoy th(, arrlount'

4. Signi

a) Reve

i) Reven

Transters

Revenues

value and

the trans

potential

Interesl in

lnterest in

estimated

carrylng a

interest rnc

the amounl is recorded in the statement of financiat position and realiscd in thc stat€mcnt of

financial pdrformance over the useful life ofthe assets that has been acquired using such funds'

ii1 Reven from exchange transactions

nrc

me is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

ture cash receipts through the expected life ofthe financial asset to that asset's net

ount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine

me for each period.

b) Budget information

The origina

Subsequent

accordance

respective a

rccorded ad

approval.

budget for FY 2022123 was approved by the county Assembly on 08/0612023.

revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in

with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional

appropriatl sareaddedtotheoriginalbudgetbytheCity/Municipalityuponreceivingthe

provals in order to conclude the finat budget' Accordingly, the CitylMunicipality

itional appropriations of (O.oO) on O2/O5/2O23 following the governing body's

The City/M nicipality's brrdget is prepared on a different basis to the actual incon.re and

e\penditure disclosed in the financial statements.'lhe tlnancial statements are plepare

U

don

for



County Governmenl of NAKURU
NAIVASHA Municipality

Annunl Repo rt und Financitl Slalenrcnls for lhe yeur ended June 30, 2023

c) l>roperty, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equiprnent are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items- When significant parts of property, plant and equiprnent are required to be replaced

at intervals, the CitylMunicipal ity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful

lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its

cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the

recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in

surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil

or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

d) Intangible assets

lntangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible

assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

anrortization and accumulated impairment losses. lnternally generated intangible assets,

excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in

surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the

intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

t2

accrual basis using a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in the statement of flrrancial

performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial

statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by Presentation

to be on the sarne basis as the approved budget. A conrparison of budget and actual anlounts,

prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then prcsented in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts. A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a

conrparable basis included in thc staternent of comparison ofbudget and actual amounts and

the actuals as per the statement of flnancial perforrnance has been presented under section .rxx

of these financial statements.



County Government of NAKURU
NAIVASHA Municipality
Annual Report and Financial Stutentenls for lhe year ended June 30, 2023

(SigniJicant accounting policies conlinued)

e) Finrncial instruments

IPSAS 4l addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition offinancial assets and

financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model

for financial assets. The entity does not haye any hedge relationships and therefore the new

hedge accounting, rules have no intpoct on the Contpany's financial slalentent.r.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, the entity

measurci a financial assct or financial linbility at its fair valuc pltts or mlnus, in tho case of a

financial asset or financial tiability not at fair valuo through surplus or deficit, transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of,the firrancial asset or firrancial Iiability.

Financial assets

Classificrtion of financial asscts

The entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the

entity's management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of

the financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is

held within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and the contractual tcrms of the financial asset give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

outstandiqg. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is held

within the management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and seiling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding. A financial esset shall bc mcasurod at fnir valuc through sltrplus or deficit

unlcss it is mcasured at amortizod cost or fair valuc through net assot6/ cqrtlty unless an cntity

has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular invcstments in cquity

instrunrents.

(Sigttilicunt ucc0untiilg p0licies cotilinuetl)

r3



County Government of NAKURU
NAIVASHA MuniciPolitY
Annual Report ond Financial Statemenls lortheyear ended June 30,2023

Subsequent measurement

Based on the business model and the cash flow c haracteristics, the entity classifies its financial

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments' Movements in fair

value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being met.

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection ofcontractualcash flows where those cash flows

representsolelypayrnentsofprincipalandinterest'andthatarenotdesignatedatfairvalue

through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that

is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is

recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest incomc from

these financial assets is included in finance income using the efTective interest rate method'

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Finoncial asgota that are hold for collection ofcontractuol cash flows and for aelling the

f.inancial sssets, where the assets'cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

interest, are measured at fair value through net assets/ equity' Movements in the carrying

amount are taken through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,

interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in

surplus/deficit. Interest income fiom these financial assets is included in finance income

using the eflective interest rate method.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/

equity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity

manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of

rhe assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recogni zed al fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis' An

estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the

year end.

(Signi/icant accounting policies conlinued)

t4
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Ann ual and Financial Slalemc nls or the year ended June 30,2023

Impairnrent

The entity assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity' The

entity recOgnizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Critical estimates and

significant judgments made by management in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are

set out in Note xx.

classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for

abllltics moasursd through Profit or loss'

Finished

manufact

costs.

nominal c

cost. Net

f) lnvcn (, rl cs

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

throtrgh non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nolninal cost), the cost ofthe inventory

is its fair value at the date olacquisition. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present

locatiru and conditions aIc accotlnted for' as tbllor'vs:

Raw matetials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

ds and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of

g overheads based on the normal operating capacity' but excluding borrowing

Aftcr initi lrecognitiorr,inventoryistneasureclatthelowerolcostandnctrealizablevalue

[{owever, the oxtcnt that a class of inventory is distributad or deploycd at no charge or for a

rge, that class ofinventory is measured at the lo\ /er ofcost and curr€nt replacement

lizable value is the estirnated selling price in the ordinary course of operations. less

consumpti

t

goo

urin

the estima tl costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange,

or distrib ion. lnventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or

n in the ordinary course of operations of the City/Municipality'

l5

Financial liabilities

Classification
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Annuol Report on
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Fint ncial Stalements lfor lhe yeor ended June 30, 2023

(S ign i lica nt occo unt i ng pol ic ies co nti n uetl)

g) Provisions

provisions are recognized when the city/Municipality has a Present obligation (legal or

constructive) as a result ofa Past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying

economicbenefitsorservicePotentialwillberequiredtosettletheob|igationandareliable

estimate can be made of the amount of thc obligation. whcrc the city/MuniciPality cxPccts

some or all of a provision to be reirnbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the

reirnbursetment is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually

certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial

performance net of any reimbursetnent.

h) Social Bencfits

Social beneflts are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or horrseholds that

mcct the eligibility criteria, ii) mirigate the cffects of social risks and iii) Address the need of

society as a rvhole. The entity recognises a social benefit as an exPense for the social benefit

schemc at the same time that it recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit scheme

is measured at the best estimate of the cost (the social benefit payments) that the entity will

incur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability'

i) Contingentliabilities

The City/Municipality does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any

contingencies in the notes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote'

t6
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(Sign ifico nt acco unli ng pol ic ies co nl i n ued)

j) Contfoigent assets

The City/h4unicipality does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible

asset wh6Se exiStence iS COntingent On the Occurrence or n6n-Occurrence Of one or more

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the City/Municipality in the notes to

the financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments

are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an

inflow of Cconomic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured

reliably, dre assct and the rclated revcnue are rccognizcd in the financial statemcnts of the

period in which the change occurs

k) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Citv/Municipalitv creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements.

CityiMunicipuli1,to sllta lha rasante s tfilinlninad lnd appropritrle polities otlopted

t) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The City/Municipality recognizes the effbcts of changes in accounting policy retrospectively'

The effecls of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective

application is impractical.

)

t7

County Government of NAKURU

m) Employee benefits - Retirement benefit plans

The CitylMunicipality provides retirernent benefits for its employees and directors' Defined

contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the City/Municipality pays

fixed contributions into a separate fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay

further conlributions if the City/Municipality does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee

benefits rehting to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to

rcheme obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the

year ln which they become payable. Dcfined bene,'it plans aro post-cmploymcnt bcnefit plarrs

othcr th.rn dc fi ncd-contribut iorr plans, The dcflned bcncfits are actuarially valued tri-onnually

on thc pro.i0cted unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lutnp sunl

pa),ments or increased future contributions on proportional basis tit all participating employers'

The contributions and Iump sum payments reduce the post-ernployment benefit obligation'



County Govenmrcnt of NAKURU
NA IVAS HA M unic ipa I i t1,

Annual Reprtrl ond Financial Slalenrcnls fttrlheycur ended Jutre 30, 2023

(Significunt occounting policies conlinued)

n) Foreign currency transactions

Trangactione in foreign currencics orc initially occounted for at thc ruling rate of exchange on

the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are

reported in the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on

that date. Exchange differences arising frorn the scttlement of creditors, or from the reporting

of creditors at rares differenr from those at rvhich they wcre initially recorded during the period'

are recognized as incon'le or e\penses in the period in rvhich thel'arise.

o) Borrowing costs

Borrorving costa are capitalized against qualifying assets as Part of Property, plant Bnd

equipment. Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is be ing

acquired 0r constructed and borrorvings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of

financial performance.

tr) Related parties

The City/Municipality regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert

control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the CitylMunicipality,

or vice versa. Members of key management are regarded as related parties and cornprise the

Board members, the citylMunicipality Managers and citylMunicipality Accountant.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are

readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges

in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at various commercial banks at the end

ofthe financial year. For the purposes ofthese financial statements, cash and cash equivalents

also include short-term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or

institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

l8
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acco unt ing policies conl in ued)

r) Co rative figu res

Where

reconfi

(a) Th

sary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

to conform to the required changes in presentation'

s)E after the reporting Pcriod

Events the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur

between e reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue

Two ofevents can be identified:

that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting

events a thc reporting date); and

(b) rh that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adiusting

evenl.s the reporring dare)

The City unicipality should indicate rvhether there arc lnaterial adjusting and non- adjusting

events a the reporting period.

t) Cu )'

The fi statcmcnts arc prcscntcd in Kcnya Shillings (Kshs') arrd tlrc volucs rourrdod off

to the nc shilling

l9
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Annual Report and Financial Slatements for lhe Yeor ended June 30,2023

5. Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the C itylMunicipality's financial statements in conforrnitY with IPSAS

requires management to make judgrnents, estimates and assurnptions that affect the reported

anrounts ofrevenues, expenses, assets and Iiabilitics, and the disclosure ofcontingent liabilities,

at the end ofthe reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estinrates

could result in outcomes that roquirc a material adjustment to the carrying atTlount of the asset

or liability affected in future periods.

State a ll j uclgetnents, estimates and assumptiotls rnade.

Estimates and assumptions.

The kcy assumptions concerning the futurc and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

the reporting date, lhat have a significant risk ofcausing a material adjustlnent to the carrying

anrounts ol assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described belorv. The

CitylMunicipality based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the

concolidstod fin.ncial ststGrlt€ntc rarere prepcred. Ho\wGv€r, oxisting eircurnstances and

assumptions about future developrnents may change due to market changes or circumstances

arisirrg beyond the control of the CitylMun icipality. Such changes are reflected in the

assurnptions when they occur.

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to

inform potential future use and value from disposal:

i) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the

CitylMunicipality.

ii) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes.

iii) The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.

iv) Availability of funds to replace the asset.

v) Changes in the market in relation to the asset.

20
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Notes to lhe Finuncial Slatemenls

6. Transfers from the County Governmcnt

(Provide rief explanation fitr this revenue)

Tra ns from Cou n Government cntities orized

--T

recorded by t .sending County olfice. An qcknowle dgement nole/rece iPt should be raised infa,our oflhe sending

Corrtrty office +Amounl recogniscd in the slatenren I of.fi nanc ial pu'ftttntonce should be the recurrenl g,'ont and

gronl lo tlt cxlcnl lhd lhctc orc rttt conditions 0llochcd. -l olal of coltnn I .rhould tic lo nole 6

The dcuils r{ rhc reconciliution huve hecn inclutled under uppendix xnt

7. Public Contributions and Donations

Payments by County on behalfofthe entity

nal development grantsUncond iti

Tota I

I'otal

m development PartnersDonation fi

s from the publicContributic

Total

2t

thc latehtJttrcnl

Liva022nw
Kshs

Fl1dzti2o22

Transfers from County Govt. - Recurrent

rtboenis-edAmounl

.t Iot:tl gragti{mouutAmount
tnooErQ,:cc(,gn-ii..cil

i .j.-''
":!r.-Y
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NA I VASIIA M unic ipality
Annual Report and Finoncial Statemenls for the year ended June 30,2023

Noles to the Financial Slotemenls
8, Levies, Fines and penalties

9. Other Revenues from Non-Exchange Transactions

(Pntvide a brief explanation/br lhis revenue)

10. Interest income

(Provide brief explanalion for thi.t reverue)

ll. Miscellaneous income

Q{8. All inconrc should be classiJied as far as possible in the relevant classes and other income
should be used to recognise incone nol elsev)here classified
Any writebacks or recoveries from write offs).

Levies

Fines

Penalties

Others (indicate and specify)
Total

Transfers from other government entities

Others (irulicute utl spctifi')

Total

Interest income from investments

Interest income on bank deposits

Others (Specify)

Total interest income

lncome from sale of tender docurnents

Others (specify)

Total other income

22

Description

,srii.B

Description
FY2021n022

Kshs.

w 2022n023

Kshs.

Deiscriptiin
w 202212023 FYe02.u2022

Kshs.
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NAIVASHA Municipality
Annual Re rt and Finoncial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Note s to lhe Financial Slotenrcnts

12. Use ofGoods and Services

Specialized nraterials and services

Oftlcc and gerrcral supplies and services

Fuel, oil and lubricants

195, I r0.521.02

*Social benefit sche
line with IPSAS 42.

13. Staff costs

mes include benefits such as cash transfers for unentployment or elderly in

'[otal

23

Utilities, supplies and services

Communication, supplies and services

Domestic travel and subsistence

Foreign travel and subsistence

Printing, advertising, supplies & serviccs

Rent and rates

Training expenses
Ity suppl lcs and sorvicos

costs
flospit
lnsura

Other operating expenses (Speclfy)

Routinc maintcnance - vehicles and othcr equiprnent

Routine rnaintenance - other assets

Contrackd Prolbssional Servtces

Aud it fees

Hire of ransport, equipment etc

Bank Charges

Social Benefit expenses*

195,110,521.02Total

Salaries r rnd wages

:urity contributionSocial ser

Othcr sta' ff costs (Spec ifii)

FV?,022D023

r. ,Kihsf::-
FV 20n:,2A22'

r' KShs.,'::'':

,.' . i .1

'FY t2022

E
I202rn021

StaTf gra{r ity
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AnnunlRepo rl and Finonciol Slutements fo

Notes lo lhe Finuncial Slulenrcnls

14. Board expenses

15. Finance costs

16. Depreciation and amortization

r ended June 30,2023r lhe yea

Chairman/Members' Honorarta

Sitting allowances

Medical Insurance

Induction and Training

Travel and accommodation

Conference Costs

Other allowances (SPcc tfv)

Total

Interest on Bank overdrafts

lnterest on loans fiorn banks

Total

Property, plant and equiPment

lntangible assets

lnvestment property carried at cost

Total depreciation and amortization

24

Dcscription
'Fl-ZTnrZVrr

Kihs.

TT2tDXNX
Kshs.
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Annua Re rt and Financial Slatemenls for lhe ear cnded Jutte 30,2023

Notes lhe Financ iol Slolemants

I 7. Ile irs and Maintenance

18. (lai loss on dis I of assets

19. Cas nd cash uivalcnts

Total c h nnd cash equivalents 98,838,372.60
(The an nt shottld ctgrec with the closing ancl opening halancc.s cr:s incl uclccl in thc sldlertrcnl
of ca.th .fl' s)

Prope - Buildings

Office UI pment

Furn i ture and fittings

Motor vehicle expenses

Maintenance of civil works
Total repairs snd maintenance

Property, plant and equipment

I ntangible assets

Tolal

Fixed dr

On - cal

posits account

deposits

Current c0unt

>eci/y)Othors(.r;

25

Fv ..,

2V2t20T)
'.:'KShs .

W,2A2\,2022

De3crintibn



County G,vernnrent o/ NAKUR U
NA IVAS IIA M uniciPu litY

'nanciol Slutenrcnts Ior thc )'e ur ended June 30, 2023
Annuol RePort and Fi

Notes to thc Finunciul Stulcnrcnls

Detailed analysis of the cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

20. Receivabtes from exchange transactions

a) Fixed deposits account

zlI bankItno ercnlen CaK v
tlquity Bank, etc

Sub- total

h) On - call dePosits

Kcnva Colrrmercial bank

Equity Bank - etc

Sub- total
Cu rrent accountc)

98,838,372 601261585429kbana IIonlC erctnKerlya

Bank - etcEqui
98, 838,3i2.50Sub- total

d) Others(sPecifY)

Cash in transit

Cash in hand

Mobile Money
Sub- total

98,838,372.60G rand total

Cu rrent Receivables

Service, water and electricitY debtors

Other exchange debtors

Less: impairrnent allowance

Total Currcnt receivables (a)

Non-Current receivables

Service, water and electricity debtors

Other exchange debtors

Total Non- current receivables (b)

Total reccivables from exchangc transac tions

26

il2022

Descriptiqn
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Kshs:,Kshs;

.-FY _':

202212023

Less: impairment al lowance



Coun Government of NAKURU
NAI M unic ipa lil1,

Ann n rt and Financial Statemenls r the year endcd June 30,2023

etn anal is for Rcceivables from cxchan c transactions

21. R vablcs from Non-Exchange transaction

cln nal sis for Reccivables from non-exchan e transactions

oh of
the
total

'/o of
the
total

FY 20212022FY
2022t2023

0%0%Less tl ran I year
0%jYo

en l- 2 yearsBetwe
0%0%Betwe n 2-3 years
0%0%Over 3 years
0%Total r

'a+b)

Transf :r from County Executive
Transf rr from XXXX Fund

Tolal r eceivables from non-cxchange transactions

"/o of
the
total

"/o of
lhe
total

FY 2021/2022FY
2022t2023

I

0% 0%
Less tlri tn I YeaI

0%Betrvee r l- 2 years 0%

0%0Y.Bctwee r 2-3 years
OoloOo/oOver 3 /ears
006ooTolal

2l

Deraription
['IGrs

I, FY.2027t2022

Kshs

w'2022na23

0%
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Annuul Rc\orl untl Financial Stulatttcnts fo

22. Prepayments

23. Inventories

Prepaid rent

Prepaid insurance

Prepaid electricitY costs

Other prePaYm enls(s Pc c$,1

Total

Stationery

Consurnables

Other inventories(.s2cc i.fy)

Total inventories at the lower ofcost

ancl net realizablc valuc

28

1.Dp?FY.i

FY 2021 120222a2212023

Descriptiog
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Ann ual fileport atul Financial Stutemefis for lhe -1,gs1y eded June 3O, 2023

(Notes to tlte Fitrmcial Statenrctrts Conlinued)

24. I'rope rty, Plantaud Equipment

As at I July 20XX(previous yezrr)

Aclditions

T rans l'ers/adj ustments

As at 3O'r' June 20XX

Additions fbr tl.re vear

Disposals fbr the year

T rans f'e r/adj ustrnents

As at 3O'h June 20XX (current year)

Depreci:rtion and imprirment

At lJuly 20XX (prcvious year)

Deprec iation

Trans t-ersr' A dj ustments

Impairrnenl

29

I---escri;rr ion
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hs Shs
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i
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i orhert..,..
l,ASsdti

Snltat,
\t/brk iri

Disposals



County Government of NAKURU
NAIVASHA Municipality
Annual ort and Financiol Stttemenls for the year ended June 30,2023

As at 30 June 20XX

Depreciation lor the year

Impairment for the year

Transfer/adj ustment

As at 30'h June 20XX (current year)

N BV as at 30th Jun 20XX (previous year)

NBV as at 30th Jun 20XX (current year)

ill:#;l if;r-.*r I lE
(speqify) ;Grithiruters

SIs

iFd rnlturi
iadtel :Other

Ass'ets

Disposals for the year

30
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Annuul rl and Financiol Slalemenls for the year ended June 30,2023

26,'I'rade and othcr payables from cxchange transactions

%

Cost

ing of the yearAt begin

Addition
the yearAt end o

tion and impairmentAmortiz
ing of the yearAt begin
lonAmortiza

thc yearAt end o

t lossImpairrnt
i the yearAl end o

NBV

bles

Dglrcripti

l'radc pat 1,975,01 8.00

31,466,574.36Retention
xpensesAccrued
bles (Spccify)Other pay

33,441,s92.36nnd othcr paynblesTolql tra

ol' of the
Total

FY 2021/2022ol, of
the

Total

Fy 2022121t23

alysis:Ageing a

r0044 t,592.36yearUnder on
V.Y.I -2 years
%Yo2-3 years
V"o/o

sOver 3 ye t/ot0033,441,592.36Total

3t

(Notes lo The Financial Slatements Continued)

25. Intangible assets

Fv2A2ln022

Dcscriplion

ry

FY 202112022

Ituhs.

FY 2022t2023

Ifths.



County Governmenl of NAKURU
NA I l/A S H A M un ic ip a I ity
Annual Report and Financiol Statements for lhe yeur arrded June 30, 2023

l,{olts to lfu Finmdul Stulcntuls

28. Provisions

29. Borrowings

The table below shows the classification of borrowings long-term and current borrowings

Rent deposits

Others (specifu)

Total

%, of thc
Totul

Conrparrrtivc FY"/, of
the

Total

Currcnt [Y

cln ana I srs:A
%%[..Jnder one year
oAoA

I -2 years
"/o"/o2-3 years
%%

0veL 3 years
%%Total

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additional Provisions (Spec rfy)

Provision utilised

Balance at the end of the ycar

Current Portion oI provision

Long term portion of provision

Total Provisions

Short term borrowings (current portion)

Long term borrowings

Total

27. Rcfundable deposits from customers

... F.Y....: .

202212023

Rv.2021nrJ22

DoiHptiori
Kshs.f-nrlft--

I-,. -
Tr -_

.52



County vernment of NAKURU
NAI Municipolity
Ann e a nd Finonc ial Slole me nt s l)r lhe ended June 30,2023

(NB: rhe
pyable
securily inleresl roles should be disclosed)

The tabl below shows the Distribution of borrowings

30. Enr Bcncfit Obligations

of lhis stateDtenl should lie lo nole 29 lolols. Currenl portion of borrowinEp ore lhose borrou/ingls lhot dre

Lr" yn, o, the next financial year. Alditional disclosures on terns o/ borrowings, nalure of borrowings.

at beginning of the PeriodBala nt

ngs during the yearBorrov

ents of borrowings during the periodRepayr

Balanc "' 
at end of the period

Bor ngs

illing loan from KCBKenya
KenYa ili ing loan from Barclays Bank

hilling loan fronr Corrsolidatcd

nss from other government

sinstitu

Borro

Kenya

Bank

lancc at end of thc ycarTotal ba

Kshs.Kshs.Kshs.Kshs.

Norr.t.rtt nt hsneflt obligation

lpIoyee benelits obligationTotaler

33

year

w:.r,o}llztll

I.

FY

29.n!z;,Winr

i

Currcnt benelit obligation
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NAIVASHA MuniciPalitY

rt unl Finuncial Stutanrcnts for thc icar cilled J une 30, 2023
AnnualRepo

Noles to lhe Finuncisl Slolemenls

3l . Dcferred Income

The dcferred income m ovement is as follows:

colurtns as nc htt wari<>us .s.)rtr"ces

Anu sed as:

CovernmentNational/Coun
Bodieslnternational Fundin

Public Contributions and Donatiotls

Total Deferred Income

KshsKshsKshsKshs

t forwardBalance brou

L !tlAdditions duLin cth

ital {undTranslcrs to

Translers to income statetrlent

Other transfers
carried forwardBalance

Current

Non- Current

Total

34

Irtlernittiott:tl
.lundcrs/.....
:r;il.*:-'::::Count!:Description

t

Irublic

trI;t-
utioDE

-l

Anrount

Kshs



County Government of NAKURU
NAIVASHA Municipality
Annual Report and Financial Statemenls for lhe yeor ended June 30' 2023

Notes t0 the Financial Statanrcnts

32. Social Benefit Liabilities

Social be t schemes include benefits such as cash transfers for trncmploymenl or elderly in line with

ITS,4S 12. They ore inatrred lo niligate against o cerlain social risk e g poverty, age , unemploYrnenl

unnng othcrs

33. Cash generated from operations

(The total of this state mcnt should tie lo lhe c()sh Jlou, seclion on net ca.sh.flows fronr operating

activilie .s)

Health soc ial benefit scheme

Unemp loyment social benefit scheme

Orphaned and vulnerable benefit scheme

People Living with disabilities bene

Elderly social bene fit scheme

fir

scheme

Bursary social beneflts

Total

bcnt socia
ial benefitsCurrent

Non- cu

Total (tic to totals ubovc)

(195,t 10,521.02)Surplu (deficit) for the year before tax

Adj usted for:
Depreciation

Amortisat ion

Cains/ losses on disposal of assets

Capital adjustmentsWorkin
Increase n inventory

Increase n receivables
payablesIncrcasc

(r9s,I r o,521 .o2)I tI csIt ar a:taral IfttfroetN IIc lr fl EPc

35
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NA I l/AS H A M un ic i P al itY

Annual Repo rt und Fin ancial Slttte nre rrls r lhe r ended June 30, 2023

Noles to llre Financlal Sldtemenls

34. Related party balances

E) Nature of relsted party relationshlps

EntitiesandotherpartiesrelatedtotheCity/Municipalityincludethosepartieswhohave

ability to exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial

decisions. Relatetl parlies include management pers6nnel, their associates and close tarnily

members.TheCity/Municipality/scherneisrelatedtothefollowingentities
a) The County Covernment.

b) Tlrc Parcnt County Government Ministry'

c) County AssernblY.

d) Key management.

e) City/Municipality Board; etc.

b) Related PartY transactions

c) I(ey management remunerltion

d) Due from related Parties

Transfers from related Parties'

Translers to related Parties

Board Members

Key Management ComPensation

Total

Due from parent Ministry

Due fiom County Covemment

Due from County AssemblY

Total

Notes lo lhe Financial Slatemenls

36

Dei'eription:

I
KshslKsh5.

2022tFY
I

I

Description ..

. r rj'

Kshs:Kshsi
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e) Due related parties

35. Con ngcnt llo trilitles

(Give de il.il

36. Cont gent Assets

Tolal

Due to rarent Ministry

Due to , lountv Government

Duc to (ey management personncl

Due to IJounty Assembly

Total

Courl c,

Bank gu

se xx\ against the entitl

arantees

Total

Corlrt ca xxx against the entity

Othcrs S recify

37



County Governntent of NAKURU

N A I\'ASHA M uniciPulitY
Annual Reporl antl Finuncial Stotemenls fitr lhe Yeur enrled June 30, 2023

Noles lo lhe Financial Slulenrcnls

37. Financial risk management

ThcCity/Municipality'sactiviticscxposeittoavarietyoffinancialrisksincludingcreditand
liquidlty rlskr and ofToct! of ch6ngos in foroign currcncy' Tho CitylMunicipality's overall risk

managelTlentprogrammefocusesonunpredictabilityofchangesinthebusinessenvironment
and seeks to rninimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its perfbrmance by settirrg

acceptable levels of risk. The city/Municipality does not hedge any risks and has in place

policies to ensure that credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history'

'fhe City/Mun icipality's financial risk tnanagctnent objectives and policies are detailed below:

I. Credit risk

The city/Municipality has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be

unabletopayamountsinfullwhendue.Creditriskarisesfromcashandcashequivalents,and
deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial

investments.
Managementassessesthecreditqualityofeachcustomer'takingintoaccountitsfinancial
pgsltlon, Past QxPcrigncc and othcr factors' lndividuol risk lirnits aro act baged on internal or

external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in

the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by

the city/Mun icipality's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the

current economic environment. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the

financial statements representing the city/Municipality's maximum exposure to credit risk

without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

At 30 June 2023 (currcnt Year)

Receivables from exchange

transactions

Receivables from non-exchange

transactions
98,838,372.60

98,838,372.60
Bank balances

98,838,3't2.60

98,838,372.60
Total

At 30 June 2022 (Previous Year)

Receivables from exchange

transactions

Receivables from non-exchange

transactions

38

,Past | ,

6x3 -,'f . -f mpirirar

Kshs. I Kshs.
Totel emounl

[khs.
ry'{oi|{gg

'I(shs.

Fully

Bank balances



County Government of NAKURU
NAIVASHA Municipality
Ann ual Reporl and Financial Stotements for the year ended June 30' 2023

Total
(NB: The kttals column should tie to the individual elements of credit risk disclosed in the enlily's slalemenl of

financial p.sition)

Notes lo the Financial Slalements

The custrmers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue

trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for

uncollectible amounts that the City/Municipality has recognised in the financial statements is

considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The City/Municipality has

significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from -rxx.

The CitylMunicipality Board sets policies and objectives and lays down parametcrs withirr

which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

II. Llquidity risk managemcnt

ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rnanagernerit rests with the city/Mun iciPal ity

Manager, who has built an appropriate liquidity risk tnanagcmcnt fralnework for thc

managerrEnt of the C itylMun icipality's short, mediurn and long-term liquidity managelnent

requirernents. The Cityi Municipality manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of

forecasts and actual cash llorvs.

The tablc bclow reprcscnts cnsll flows poyablc by thc city/Munlcipal lty tlndcr non-dcrivntivc

finanoial linbilitior by their rornaining contrrlctunl nreturitios &t the reP<trting dcto' The arnountt

disclosed in the tablc are the contractual undiscourrted cash flows. Balances dtre within l2

months equal their car[,ing balances. as the impact of discounting is not signiticant.

liade payables

Current portion of [ron'o\\'ings

Employee benefi t obligation

Total
At 30 Jun 2022 (previous Year)
Trade payables

Provisions

Employee benefi t obl igation

Total

39

At 30 Jun 2023 (current year)

a

Provisions

Current portion of borrowings
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Counly Government of NAKURU
NAIVASHA Municipality
Annual Report and Financial Slalements for the year endcd June 30, 2023

Notes to the Financial Stalements

III. Mrrket risk

The Board has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by

the CitylMunicipality on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its

internal aocounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices

and foreign exchange rates which will affect the City/Municipality's income or the value of its

holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and

control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management

Committee. The City/Municipality's Finance Department is responsible for the development

of detailed risk management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk

Management Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies. Therc has

becn no chlnge to the CitylMun icipal ity's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it

managcs and mcasures the risk.

IV. Forcign currency risk
'flrc Cit1,/Municipalitv has trnnsactional currcncy cxposurcs. Sttch cxposttrc ariscs lhrotlgh

purchases Of goods and services that arc done in currettcies other than the local currellcy'

lnvoices denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date ofthe invoice

ancl convcrsion at thc time ofpayment is clone using the prevailing exchange rate' l'he carrying

atnolnt ol'thc Cit)iN4unicipalitl''s fbreign currency denontinatc'd rnonetar}'assets and

nlonctary lilbilities at the end ofthe rcporting period are ns follorvs:

(fhe entit)' m :s foreign exchangc ri.tk jirn .frtttrr 'e connercial lransqclion.s and
naSc

recognised asse

payments.)

ts and

liahilitit.s h.v prrtitcting.frtr expectcd soles procce(ls (tn(l nolching the sumc vilh exPtctcd

At 30 June 2023 (current year)

Finiurc ial a$ets

98.838.372.6098.838,372.60

cr payablesrtltdlil I dI (I

Borro I ngs

Debtors/ redeivables

Liabilities

Cash

Net foreign currencv asset/(liahility)

4t

lnvestments



County Government of NAKURU
NAIVASHA Municipality
Annuul Repor, and Flnanclttl Stqlerne nls f<tr tlte ycar ended June 3 2023

Noles l0 the Financial Stolen enls

Forcisn currencv sensitivitv analysis

The following table demonstrates the effect on the Fund's statement of financial performance

on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate of the three

main transaction currencies, with all other variables held constant. The reverse would also

occur if the Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constant.

\/. Interest rate risk
lnt€rost roto risk ia the risk that the ontity'3 finsncial eondition rnay be advorsoly affectcd rs a

result ofchanges in interest rate levels. The entity's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits.

This exposes the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises

mainly from interest rate movements on the Fund's deposits.

Mttttogcmcnt of inlcrcsl rulc risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that

offer favourable interest rates.

202J (current year)

Euro l0%
USD I Oo/o

2022 (previous year)

t0%Euro

USD t0%

42
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NAI Municipality
Annrut Repo rt and Financiol Stalemenlsfor tlte ear ended June 30, 2023

Noles lo the Financiol Stoteme nts

VI. Capital risk management.

The objective of the City/Municipality's capital risk management is to safeguard the

City/Municipality's ability to continue as a going concern. The City/Municipality capital

structure comprises of the fol lowing CitylMunicipality's:

neuattr*ion ."ser*
98.838,372.60Capital/Development Grants/City /Mun icipality

.a. oc.r,i u l,ntcd rurplu"
98,838,372.60Tota ds

rrowrngs'I'otal

(98.838.3 72.60)h and bank balancesI-e ss

Nct ti t/(cxccss cash and clslr equivrlents) (98.838.3 72.60)

00.0001,Gea ring

43
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20. ApPendices

Appcndix 1. Progress on Follorv up of Auditors Recommcndations'

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor' and management

comtnents that were provided to the auditor

Guidance Notes:

a)Usethesamereferencenumbersascontainedintheexternalauditreport.

b) obtain the ..lssue/observation" and "management comments", required above' from final

external audit report that is signed by Management'

c) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point

persons within your entity responsible for implementation of each issue'

d) Indicate the status of "Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report

to County TreasurY.

To be Signed by the Accounling officer olthe Entity

44
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Counly Government of NAKURU
NAIVASHA Municipality
Annual Report and Financiol Statements or the year ended lune 30, 2023

Appendix 3: Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Name of the Organization
Telephone Number
Email Address
Name of CEO/MD/Head

Name and contact details of contact person (in case ofany clarifications)

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4
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NAIVASHA Municipality
AnnualRepo rl and Financial Statements for tlte ysur eruledlune 30, 2023

Appendix 4: Disaster Expenditure lleporting Tcmplate

Date

Entity

47
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